

Attachment 4 - Redline CMC Changes

Chapter 19.21 - CAMARILLO COMMONS MIXED-USE (CCM) ZONE

19.21.020- Uses authorized under a planned development permit.

The following uses are permitted in the CCM Zone if a planned development permit is granted by the planning commission in accordance with this chapter. All uses must conform to the development standards of this chapter, and be conducted wholly within a building, except enterprises customarily conducted in the open (i.e., outside dining in conjunction with a restaurant):

1. Antique stores;
2. Apparel stores;
3. Appliance, sales and service;
4. Art studios, galleries;
5. Arts, crafts, music and photographic supply stores;
6. Auditoriums, exclusive of tents or temporary structures;
7. Bakery shops (including outside dining tables);
8. Banks, credit unions, trust companies and other similar financial institutions;
9. Barbershops;
10. Beauty shops and salons;
11. Bicycle shop;
12. Bookstores;
13. Bowling alleys;
14. Carpet, floor covering, and ceramic tile stores;
15. Chiropractic offices;
16. Churches;
17. Clubs and lodges, private;
18. Coffee shops (including outside dining tables);
19. Computer services and sales;
20. Confectionery stores;
21. Dance halls and dancing studios;
22. ~~[intentionally deleted] Day care nurseries, short term, providing care for six children or less, subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165;~~
23. Day spa;
24. Delicatessens (including outside dining tables);
25. Dressmaking shops;
26. Draperies and window coverings, sales;
27. Drugstores and pharmacies;
28. Electronics, sales and repairs of televisions, VCR's, stereos, computers, and related equipment;

29. Fire stations, public buildings, and facilities for federal, state, county and city agencies, not including jails, prisons and other places of confinement;
30. Florist shops;
31. Furniture and appliance stores;
32. Garden supply stores;
33. Greeting card shops;
34. Grocery stores;
35. Gymnasiums;
36. Hardware stores;
37. Health clubs;
38. Ice cream and yogurt shops;
39. Interior decorating establishments;
40. Jewelry stores;
41. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments;
42. Library;
43. Live/work units;
44. Meat markets;
45. Medical laboratories, excluding research and development;
46. Movie, music and games, sales or rental;
47. Museums;
48. Music conservatories and studios;
49. Newspaper office (excludes newspaper printing);
50. Nurseries, plant;
51. Office, business and professional;
52. Office, medical and dental;
53. Office, veterinary, excluding routine overnight boarding;
54. Off-street parking;
55. Optician;
56. Paint stores;
57. Pet shops, pet grooming;
58. Pharmacy;
59. Photography store, sales and repair of photography equipment and photo processing;
60. Photography studios;
61. Plumbing shops;
62. Post Office;
63. Printing shops (i.e., blueprinting, photocopying, and offset);
64. Public parks, playgrounds and community centers;

65. Residential dwelling units above first floor of a mixed-use building, as part of a commercial usage;
66. Restaurants and cafes (including outside dining);
67. Retail stores or businesses not involving any kind of manufacturing, processing or treating of products other than that which is clearly incidental to the retail store or business conducted on the premises subject to the following conditions and limitations:
 - a. Not more than three persons may be employed in permitted processing or treating of products;
 - b. The operations and projects may not unreasonably emit noise, odor, dust, smoke, vibration or other objectionable characteristics;
68. Shoe stores;
69. Stationery stores;
70. Studios—Art, dance, martial arts, music, etc;
71. Tailor shops;
72. Tennis clubs and swim clubs;
73. Theatre, live;
74. Theaters, movie
75. Transportation terminal (i.e., bus, taxi, or train);
76. Travel agency, ticket office;
77. Trophy stores, including plaques and related merchandise;
78. Variety stores;
79. Video stores, sales and rentals of videos and recorders;
80. Uses and structures which are incidental or accessory to any of the uses permitted in this zone;
81. Other uses which in the judgment of the planning commission are similar to, compatible with, and no more objectionable than any of those enumerated in this section in accordance with Chapter 19.60.

(Ord. 1013 § 2 (part), 2007.)

19.21.045 - Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Camarillo Commons Mixed-Use (CCM) Zone if a conditional use permit is approved by the director in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~A. Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

~~B-A. Day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165.~~

Chapter 19.22 - P-O PROFESSIONAL OFFICE ZONE

19.22.040 - Uses subject to a conditional use permit.

The following uses may be permitted in the P-O zone if a conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided for in the Chapter 19.62, and such use conforms to every term and condition of the permit and the following: The conditional use permit may be granted if the applicant demonstrates that the use

will not be injurious or detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare; the application will be compatible with the uses, zone, and property within the area; the conditional use permit may include conditions which, in the opinion of the commission, are imposed to insure compatibility and to mitigate any adverse condition involved with the use; the permit is necessary to make reasonable use of the property:

1. Churches;
2. Educational institutions: business, professional schools including dancing academies, art institutes but excluding manual arts, auto body, motor repair, carpentry and public schools;
3. Charitable and philanthropic institutions;
4. Publicly owned or operated buildings and uses including libraries, museums and community buildings; but excluding jails, prisons, and other places of confinement, dumps, and sanitary fills;
5. Sanitariums or convalescent homes; only the expansion of an existing facility or new facilities in close proximity to a hospital where a need can be shown;
6. Tennis and swim clubs, gymnasiums and handball facilities;
7. Public utility buildings or structures including radio and television broadcasting studios, but not including transmitters;
8. Colleges or universities which offer a program of professional preparatory instruction or any combination thereof offering full curricula as required by state law;
9. Buildings containing a height greater than twenty-five feet;
10. Temporary agricultural stands in accordance with Chapter 19.62;
11. ~~Day care nurseries and day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children~~[intentionally deleted];
12. Indoor theaters;
13. Commercial recreation uses and sports complexes;
14. Hotels and motels with convention and/or recreational facilities.

(Ord. 911 § 3, 1999; Ord. 891 § 1, 1998; Ord. 867 § 1, 1997; Ord. 790 § 1, 1993; Ord. 660 § 2, 1988; Ord. 512 § 10 (part), 1982; Ord. 360 § 1 (part), 1977: prior code § 9406.3 (part).) (Ord. No. 1108, § 4, 3-11-2015; Ord. No. 1109, § 4, 3-25-2015)

19.22.045- Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Professional Office (P-O) Zone if a conditional use permit is approved by the director in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

- A. Day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165.

Chapter 19.23 - CMU (VILLAGE COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE) ZONE

19.23.020 - Uses authorized under a planned development permit.

The following uses are permitted in the CMU zone, if a planned development permit is granted by the planning commission in accordance with this chapter. All uses must conform to the development standards of this chapter, and be conducted wholly within a building, except enterprises customarily conducted in the open (i.e., automobile sales, plant nurseries, restaurants with outside dining):

- A. Antique stores;

- B. Apparel stores;
- C. Appliance, sales and service;
- D. Art studios, galleries;
- E. Arts, crafts, music and photographic supply stores;
- F. Auditoriums, exclusive of tents or temporary structures;
- G. Auction business, when conducted within a building, but excluding livestock sales;
- H. Bakery shops, including outside dining tables;
- I. Banks, savings and loan, credit unions, trust companies;
- J. Barber shops;
- K. Beauty shops and salons;
- L. Bicycle shop;
- M. Blueprinting, photostating and photo finishing facilities;
- N. Bookstores;
- O. Carpet, floor covering and ceramic tile stores;
- P. Chiropractic offices;
- Q. Churches;
- R. Clubs and lodges, private;
- S. Coffee stores, including outside dining tables;
- T. Computer services and sales;
- U. Confectionery stores;
- V. ~~[intentionally deleted] Day care nurseries and day care nurseries, short term, providing care for more than six children, subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165 of this code;~~
- W. Delicatessens, including outside dining tables;
- X. Dressmaking shops;
- Y. Draperies and window coverings, sales;
- Z. Drugstores;
- AA. Dry goods and notions stores;
- BB. Electronics, sales and repairs of televisions, VCR's, stereos, computers and related equipment;
- CC. Fire stations, public buildings, and facilities for federal, state, county and city agencies, not including jails, prisons and other places of confinement;
- DD. Florist shops;
- EE. Food stores;
- FF. Fruit and vegetable stores;
- GG. Furniture and appliance stores;
- HH. Greeting card shops;

- II. Gymnasiums;
- JJ. Grocery stores (maximum size of fifteen thousand square feet);
- KK. Hardware stores;
- LL. Health clubs;
- MM. Historical museums;
- NN. Hotels and motels and senior hotels;
- OO. Ice cream and yogurt shops;
- PP. Interior decorating establishments;
- QQ. Jewelry stores;
- RR. Library;
- SS. (Intentionally omitted);
- TT. Meat markets;
- UU. Medical laboratories;
- VV. Music conservatories and studios;
- WW. Newspaper office, excludes newspaper printing;
- XX. Nurseries, plant;
- YY. Offices, business and professional;
- ZZ. Office, medical and dental;
- AAA. Off-street parking;
- BBB. Optician;
- CCC. Pet shops, pet grooming;
- DDD. Plumbing shops;
- EEE. Post office;
- FFF. Printing shops (i.e., blueprinting, photocopying and offset);
- GGG. Photography store, sales and repair of photography equipment and photo processing;
- HHH. Photography studios;
- III. Radio and television retail sales and repair stores.;
- JJJ. Restaurants and cafes, including outside dining;
- KKK. Retail stores or businesses not involving any kind of manufacturing, processing or treating of products other than that which is clearly incidental to the retail store or business conducted on the premises subject to the following conditions and limitations:
 - 1. Not more than three persons may be employed in permitted manufacturing processing or treating of products,

2. The operations and projects may not unreasonably emit noise, odor, dust, smoke, vibration or other objectionable causes;

LLL. Schools;

MMM. Shoe repair shops;

NNN. Small recycling facilities, which do not occupy any required parking;

OOO. Stationery stores;

PPP. Tailor shops;

QQQ. Telephone exchanges;

RRR. Transportation terminal (i.e., bus, taxi, or train);

SSS. Travel agency, ticket office;

TTT. Trophy stores, including plaques and related merchandise;

UUU. Variety stores;

VVV. Wallpaper and paint stores;

WWW. Uses and structures which are incidental or accessory to any of the uses permitted in this zone;

XXX. Video stores, sales and rentals of videos and recorders;

YYY. Other uses which in the judgment of the planning commission are similar to, compatible with, and no more objectionable than any of those enumerated in this chapter in accordance with Chapter 19.60 of this code.

19.23.045- Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Village Commercial Mixed-Use (CMU) Zone if a conditional use permit is approved by the director in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~A. Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

~~B-A. Day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165.~~

Chapter 19.24 - C-N COMMERCIAL NEIGHBORHOOD ZONE

19.24.025- Uses subject to a conditional use permit.

The following uses may be permitted in the C-N zone if a conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided and in accordance with the requirements set forth in Chapter 19.62 and such use conforms to every term and condition of the permit:

A. Temporary agricultural stands;

B. Intermediate recycling facilities which are incidental or accessory to any of the uses permitted in this zone;

C. ~~Day care nurseries and day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children;[intentionally deleted];~~

- D. The concurrent use of an off-sale alcoholic beverage establishment with a grocery store or drug store.

19.24.026- Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Commercial Neighborhood (C-N) Zone if a conditional use permit is approved by the director in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~A. Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

~~B.A. Day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165.~~

Chapter 19.25 - COT (CAMARILLO OLD TOWN) ZONE

19.25.020- Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted in the COT zone when such use and location conform to every term and condition of the planned development permit issued for the development where the use is to be conducted. New developments are required to obtain a planned development permit in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. All uses shall conform with the development standards of this chapter and be conducted wholly within a building, except enterprises customarily conducted in the open (i.e., automobile sales, plant nurseries, restaurants with outside dining):

1. Antique stores;
2. Apparel stores;
3. Appliance, sales and service;
4. Art studios, galleries;
5. Auditoriums, exclusive of tents or temporary structures;
6. Auction business, when conducted within a building, but excluding livestock sales;
7. Automobile service stations, including the retail sale of motor vehicle fuel and repairs for motor vehicles (including indoor facilities for lubrication, battery and brake service, tire sales, minor adjustments and repair, auto glass sales and repair, but excluding painting, body work, steam cleaning, major repairs), mini-marts and/or the retail sale of beer, wine, or other alcoholic beverages, except as permitted under a conditional use permit;
8. Automobile sales, new and used, including trailer, truck, recreational vehicle, mobile homes and boat sales yards, and subject to the following conditions: No repair or reconditioning of automobiles, trailers or boats shall be permitted;
9. Bakery shops (including outside dining tables);
10. Banks, savings and loan, credit unions, trust companies;
11. Barber shops;
12. Beauty shops;
13. Billiard and pool halls;
14. Blueprinting, photostating and photo finishing facilities;
15. Bookstores;
16. Bowling alleys;
17. Car washes;

18. Carpet, floor covering, and ceramic tile stores;
19. Chiropractic offices;
20. Churches;
21. Clubs and lodges, private;
22. Coffee stores (including outside dining tables);
23. Confectionery stores;
24. Dance halls and dancing studios;
25. ~~[intentionally deleted] Day care nurseries and day care nurseries, short term, providing care for more than six children, subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165;~~
26. Delicatessens (including outside dining tables);
27. Dressmaking shops;
28. Draperies and window coverings, sales;
29. Drugstores;
30. Dry goods and notions stores;
31. Electronics, sales and repairs of televisions, VCR's, stereos, and related equipment;
32. Fire stations, public buildings, and facilities for federal, state, county and city agencies, not including jails, prisons and other places of confinement;
33. Fish sales, display and sales of ornamental fish and related products;
34. Florist shops;
35. Food stores;
36. Fruit and vegetable stores;
37. Funeral parlors and mortuaries;
38. Furniture and appliance stores;
39. Furniture upholstery;
40. Garden supply stores;
41. Gymnasiums;
42. Grocery stores;
43. Hardware stores;
44. Health clubs;
45. Historical museums;
46. Hotels and motels and senior hotels;
47. Ice cream and yogurt shops;
48. Interior decorating establishments;
49. Jewelry stores;
50. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments;
51. Library;
52. [Intentionally omitted];
53. Meat markets;

54. Medical laboratories;
55. Millinery shops;
56. Music conservatories and studios;
57. Newspaper office;
58. Nurseries, plant;
59. Offices, business and professional;
60. Office, medical and dental;
61. Offices, veterinary (provided that veterinary establishments shall be in a completely enclosed building);
62. Off-street parking;
63. Optician;
64. Pet shops, pet grooming;
65. Plumbing shops;
66. Post office;
67. Printing shops (i.e., blueprinting, photocopying, and offset);
68. Photography store, sales and repair of photography equipment and photo processing;
69. Photography studios;
70. Radio and television retail sales and repair stores;
71. Restaurants and cafes (including outside dining);
72. Retail stores or businesses not involving any kind of manufacturing, processing or treating of products other than that which is clearly incidental to the retail store or business conducted on the premises subject to the following conditions and limitations:
 - a. Not more than five persons shall be employed in permitted manufacturing processing or treating of products,
 - b. The operations and projects shall not unreasonably emit noise, odor, dust, smoke, vibration or other objectionable causes;
73. Schools;
74. Shoe repair shops;
75. Small recycling facilities (which do not occupy any required parking);
76. Stationery stores;
77. Tailor shops;
78. Taxidermists;
79. Telephone exchanges;
80. Theaters, indoor;
81. Transportation terminal (i.e., bus, taxi, or train);
82. Travel agency, ticket office;
83. Trophy stores, including plaques and related merchandise;
84. Variety stores;
85. Wallpaper and paint stores;

86. Uses and structures which are incidental or accessory to any of the uses permitted in this zone;
87. Video stores, sales and rentals of videos and recorders;
88. Other uses which in the judgment of the planning commission are similar to, compatible with, and no more objectionable than any of those enumerated in this section in accordance with Chapter 19.60 of this code.

19.25.045- Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Camarillo Old Town (COT) Zone if a conditional use permit is approved by the director in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~A. Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

~~B.A. Day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165."~~

Chapter 19.26 - CPD COMMERCIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONE

19.26.030- Uses requiring planned development permits.

The uses set forth below are permitted in the CPD zone only if a planned development permit is obtained, as stated in Section 19.26.200 and such use conforms to every term and condition of the permit. All uses shall be conducted wholly within a building, except enterprises customarily conducted in the open such as automobile sales, plant nurseries, restaurants and recycling centers:

1. Antique stores;
2. Art studios;
3. Auditoriums, exclusive of tents or temporary structures;
4. Auction business, when conducted within a building, but excluding livestock sales;
5. Automobile service stations including the retail sale of motor vehicle fuel and repairs for motor vehicles including indoor facilities for lubrication, battery and brake service, tire repair, minor adjustments and repair, but excluding painting, body work, steam cleaning, major repairs, mini-marts and/or the retail sale of beer, wine, or other alcoholic beverages except as permitted under a conditional use permit;
6. Automobile sales, new and used, including trailer, truck, recreational vehicle, mobilehomes and boat sales yards, and subject to the following condition: No repair or reconditioning of automobiles, trailers or boats shall be permitted unless such work is done entirely within an enclosed building;
7. Automobile diagnostic center;
8. Appliance, sales and service;
9. Banks, savings and loan, trust companies;
10. Barbershops;
11. Baths, turkish and similar types;
12. Beauty shops;
13. Billiard and pool halls;
14. Blueprinting, photostating and photofinishing facilities;
15. Bookstores;

16. Bowling alleys;
17. Car washes;
18. Churches;
19. Clubs and lodges, private;
20. (Deleted);
21. Confectionery stores;
22. Dancehalls and dancing studios;
23. ~~[intentionally deleted]; Day-care nurseries and day-care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165~~
24. Delicatessens;
25. Dressmaking shops;
26. Drugstores;
27. Drygoods and notions stores;
28. Fire stations, public buildings, and facilities for federal, state, county and city agencies, not including jails, prisons and other places of confinement;
29. Floricultural and horticultural structures, for all types of related uses;
30. Florist shops;
31. Fruit and vegetable stores;
32. Funeral parlors and mortuaries;
33. Furniture and appliance stores;
34. Garages for the storage and repair of motor vehicles;
35. Gymnasiums;
36. Grocery stores;
37. Hardware stores;
38. Health studios, reducing salons;
39. Hospitals and sanitariums, excluding mental;
40. Hotels and motels and senior hotels;
41. Ice storage houses of not more than five-ton capacity;
42. Interior decorating establishments;
43. Jewelry stores;
44. Laundry and dry cleaning establishments;
45. (Intentionally omitted);
46. Meat markets;
47. Medical laboratories;
48. Millinery shops;
49. Music conservatories and studios;
50. Newspaper offices and plants;
51. Nurseries, plant;

52. Offices, business and professional;
53. Offices, veterinary (provided that veterinary establishments shall be in a completely enclosed building);
54. Plumbing shops;
55. Printing shops (i.e., blueprinting and photocopying and offset);
56. Photo shops, with drive-up windows;
57. Radio and television retail sales and repair stores;
58. Restaurants and cafes, including drive-up types;
59. Retail stores or businesses not involving any kind of manufacturing, processing or treating of products other than that which is clearly incidental to the retail store or business conducted on the premises subject to the following conditions and limitations:
 - a. Not more than five persons shall be employed in permitted manufacturing processing or treating of products,
 - b. The operations and products shall not unreasonably emit noise, odor, dust, smoke, vibration or other objectionable causes;
60. Schools;
61. Shoe repair shops;
62. Small recycling facilities (which do not occupy any required parking);
63. Stationery stores;
64. Tailor shops;
65. Taxidermists;
66. Telephone exchange;
67. Theaters, indoor;
68. Transportation terminal (i.e., bus, taxi, or train);
69. Travel agency, ticket office;
70. Variety stores;
71. Wallpaper and paint stores;
72. Wearing apparel store;
73. Uses and structures which are incidental or accessory to any of the uses permitted in this zone;
74. Other uses which in the judgment of the commission are similar to, compatible with and no more objectionable than any of those enumerated herein.

19.26.045 - Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Commercial Planned Development (CPD) Zone if a director level conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~A. Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

~~B-A. Day care nurseries, short-term, providing care for more than six children subject to the standards of Section 19.62.165~~

Chapter 19.27 - SC SERVICE COMMERCIAL ZONE

19.27.040 - Uses requiring a conditional use permit.

- A. The following uses may be permitted in the SC zone if a conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62 of this code:
1. Artists lofts with studio/work space.
 2. Bottling and canning plants.
 3. ~~Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, including retail sales of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises~~[intentionally deleted].
 4. Buildings with a height greater than thirty-five feet.
 5. Commercial recreational uses.
 6. Concurrent use of mini-marts with a service station (without alcohol sales).
 7. Dance studios.
 8. Drinking establishments, bars.
 9. Equipment rental and service.
 10. Gymnasiums and health clubs.
 11. Gymnastics.
 12. Martial arts studios.
 13. Museums.
 14. Residential dwelling units above the first floor of a mixed-use building, as part of a commercial usage.
 15. Restaurants with or without alcohol sales (may include ancillary outside seating).
 16. Skating rinks.
 17. Veterinary clinic with outdoor kennels.

(Ord. No. 1066, § 1, 9-14-2011; Ord. No. 1099, § 4(Exh. A), 12-10-2014)

19.27.041 - Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Service Commercial (SC) Zone if a director level conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant:~~

- A. ~~Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, including retail sales of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises.~~

Chapter 19.28 - L-M LIMITED MANUFACTURING ZONE

19.28.050 - Uses subject to a conditional use permit.

A. The following uses are permitted with a conditional use permit as set forth in Chapter 19.62:

1. Bottling and canning plants.
2. ~~Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, including retail sales of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises~~~~[intentionally deleted]~~.
3. Buildings in excess of thirty-five feet in height.
4. Business park, subject to the uses permitted in the L-M zone on parcels of less than one acre but not less than twenty thousand square feet in conjunction with the development of four or more such contiguous parcels. The business park must incorporate common accessways and be designed with compatible landscaping and architectural features.
5. Car wash facilities, full-service and/or automated facility (excluding mini-marts and the sale of alcoholic beverages).
6. Commercial recreation uses and sports complexes.
7. Electrical substations, power booster or conversion plants.
8. Factory Outlet Center. The expansion of a manufactured outlet facility which is located on a lot classified in the CPD zone may be permitted on an adjoining lot classified in the LM zone.
9. Gas measurement stations.
10. Heliport landing areas.
11. Private water distribution facilities.
12. Public utility transmission substation.
13. Recreational vehicle sales, service and the sale of recreational vehicle equipment and ancillary activities associated with recreational vehicle sales and service in a complex consisting of a minimum combined area of fifteen acres. The complex may be a single-use development or a combination of tenants which would have common circulation, landscaping, parking and other design standards.
14. Restaurants.
15. Service stations (excluding mini-marts and the sale of alcoholic beverages).
16. Telephone exchange buildings.
17. Water pumping plants, reservoirs or water storage tanks.

(Ord. 867 § 3, 1997; Ord. 830 § 2, 1995; Ord. 792 § 2, 1993; Ord. 727 § 1, 1990; Ord. 703 § 1, 1990; Ord.

270 § 1 (part), 1974: prior code § 9410.4.) (Ord. No. 1099, § 4(Exh. A), 12-10-2014)

19.28.051 - Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Limited Manufacturing (L-M) Zone if a director level conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~A. Alcoholic beverages, off sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

B.A. Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, including retail sales of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises.

Chapter 19.30 - M-1 LIGHT MANUFACTURING ZONE

19.30.040 - Uses permitted by conditional use permit.

A. The following uses are permitted in the M-1 zone if a conditional use permit is obtained under Chapter 19.62 of this code:

1. Amusement parks and batting cage facilities.
2. Banks and financial institutions.
3. ~~Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, and including the retail sale of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises~~[intentionally deleted].
4. Buildings in excess of forty feet, excluding rooftop mechanical equipment.
5. Carnivals and circuses.
6. Churches, temples and other places of worship.
7. Clubs and lodges, private.
8. Dairy farms.
9. Dog kennels.
10. Gymnasium or gymnastic club or studio, martial arts club and studio.
11. Home improvement showrooms.
12. Hospital or clinic for animals; provided, if large animals are to be treated, no treatment rooms or pens for large animals may be maintained closer than two hundred feet to any property line.
13. Hospital or clinic for small animals, dogs, cats, birds and the like; provided, that such hospital or clinic and any treatment rooms, cages, pens, or kennels must be maintained within a completely enclosed, soundproof building and that such hospital or clinic must be operated in such a way as to produce no objectionable odors or noise outside its walls.
14. Labor supply camps.
15. Race tracks.
16. Radio or television transmitter or stations.
17. Recycling facility—Large.
18. Restaurants with or without alcohol sales (may include ancillary outside seating).
19. Skating rinks, indoor.
20. Theaters, including open air or drive-in.
21. Washing facilities, automobile.

19.30.041 - Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the Light Manufacturing (M-1) Zone if a director level conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

~~Alcoholic beverages, off-sale in conjunction with an approved restaurant;~~

- A. ~~Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, and including the retail sale of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises.~~

Chapter 19.32 - M-2 GENERAL MANUFACTURING ZONE

19.32.040 - Uses permitted by conditional use permit.

A. The following uses are permitted in the M-2 zone if a conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62 of this code:

1. Amusement activities other than arcades, carnivals, circuses, skating rinks, theaters (outdoor) and accessory uses.
2. Auto salvage yards, junkyards, auto wrecking yards.
3. ~~Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, and including the retail sale of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises~~[intentionally deleted].
4. Brick and terra cotta manufacturing.
5. Buildings in excess of forty feet, excluding rooftop mechanical equipment.
6. Dog kennels.
7. Drop forge manufacture.
8. Emergency shelters and transitional housing.
9. Exploration, drilling, production, and storage of oil and natural gas.
10. Fertilizer manufacture.
11. Glue manufacture.
12. Heliports, including site sales, ancillary repair and storage.
13. Hospital or clinic for animals; provided, that such hospital or clinic and any treatment rooms, cages, pens, or kennels be maintained within a completely enclosed, soundproof building and that such hospital or clinic be operated in such a way as to produce no objectionable odors or noise outside its walls.
14. Jet propulsion engine testing.
15. Natural resources: development of, including necessary structures and appurtenances.
16. Race tracks.
17. Recycling facility—Large.
18. Rifle or pistol ranges.
19. Rock crushing plants.
20. Soda and compound manufacture.

(Ord. 977 § 8, 2005; Ord. 640 § 6, 1987; Ord. 537 § 4, 1983; Ord. 398 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9412.3.)

(Ord. No. 1099, § 4(Exh. A), 12-10-2014)

19.32.045 - Uses requiring conditional use permits that may be approved at the director level.

The following uses may be permitted in the General Manufacturing (M-2) Zone if a director level conditional use permit is obtained in the manner provided in Chapter 19.62:

- A. Breweries, wineries, and distilleries, with or without tasting areas, and including the retail sale of alcoholic beverages manufactured on-site that will be consumed off the premises.

Chapter 19.62 - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

19.62.010 - Intent and purpose.

- A.— The conditional use permit is intended for those types of land uses which require special consideration in a particular zone or in the city as a whole due to: the size of the area needed for full development of such use; the unusual traffic, noise, vibration, smoke or other problems incidental to its operation; special locational requirements not related to zoning; or to the effect that such uses may have on property values, health, safety, and welfare in the neighborhood or in the community as a whole. It is also for uses whose approximate location is indicated on the general plan but whose exact location and arrangement must be carefully studied. In granting the permit, certain safeguards to protect the health, safety, and general welfare may be required as conditions of approval.
- B.— Uses existing on the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter which are listed as permitted subject to conditional use permit or special use permit in the zone in which they are located may continue without securing such a permit; however, any extension or expansion of such use ~~shall~~may require a conditional use permit for such extension or expansion.
- C.— Uses listed in the individual zones as "uses permitted by conditional use permit" may be permitted in such zones subject to the provisions of this section. The community development director ("director") or planning commission ~~shall ("commission") is authorized to~~ review and approve or disapprove the use. The director or commission's action ~~shall be~~is final unless appealed ~~to the city council in~~accordance with this chapter.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602 (part).)~~

19.62.020 - Uses permitted in all zones subject to conditional use permit.

The following uses may be permitted pursuant to the issuance of a conditional use permit in accordance with this section in any zone except where expressly prohibited:

- A.— Temporary construction office and yard on or adjacent to where a project has been approved;
- B.— Public utility structures and installations;
- C.— Radio or television transmitters.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(A).)~~

19.62.030 - Conditional use permit findings and conditions.

Before any conditional use permit is approved, the applicant ~~shall~~must show and the director or planning commission ~~shall~~must so find as follows:

- A.— That the use applied for at the location set forth in the application is properly one for which a conditional use permit is authorized by this title;
- B.— That the use is necessary or desirable for the development of the community, is in harmony with the various elements or objectives of the general plan, and is not detrimental to existing uses or to uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the proposed use is to be located;
- C.— That the site for the intended use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use and all of the yards, setbacks, walls or fences, landscaping and other features required in order to adjust the use to those existing or permitted future uses on land in the neighborhood;

- D. — That the site for the proposed use relates to streets and highways properly designed and improved to carry the type and quantity of traffic generated or to be generated by the proposed use;
- E. — That the conditions set forth as part of the approval of the conditional use permit are deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare. Such conditions may include:
1. — Regulation of use,
 2. — Special yards, spaces and buffers,
 3. — Fences and walls,
 4. — Surfacing of parking areas subject to city specifications,
 5. — Requiring street, service road or alley dedications and improvements or appropriate bonds,
 6. — Regulation of points of vehicular ingress and egress,
 7. — Regulation of signs,
 8. — Requiring landscaping and maintenance thereof,
 9. — Requiring maintenance of the grounds,
 10. — Regulation of noise, vibration, odors, etc.,
 11. — Regulation of time for certain activities,
 12. — Time period within which the proposed use shall be developed,
 13. — Phasing of improvements,
 14. — Type of materials to be utilized in the construction,
 15. — Duration of use, and
 16. — Such other conditions as will make possible the development of the city in an orderly and efficient manner and in conformity with the intent and purposes set forth in this title.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(B).)~~

19.62.040 - Procedure—Application.

- A. — Filing. Each application for conditional use permit ~~shall~~must be verified before a notary public by the owner of the land or building, or the lessee of the land or building having a leasehold interest of not less than twenty-five years.
- B. — Form and Contents. Applications ~~shall~~must be made to the director or planning commission on forms furnished by the planning department and ~~shall~~must be full and complete, including such data as an ownership list and map of all property owners within a ~~threesix~~-hundred-foot radius of the subject property taken from the last equalized ownership list and additional information that may be prescribed by the director or commission to assist in determining the validity of the request. Incomplete applications ~~shall~~will not be accepted for filing.

Development plans and elevations of the proposed development ~~shall~~must be submitted as a part of any application with sufficient number as determined by the ~~planning~~ director in accordance with the following:

1. — An accurately dimensioned plot plan showing existing and proposed topography, all proposed building, parking, landscaping areas, walls and all existing or proposed streets within a three-hundred-foot radius of the property;

- 2.—The dimension of all yards, setbacks, parking area, driveways and square footage of all building landscaping and building coverage;
- 3.—The elevation of all buildings proposed with a notation of the type of material proposed in addition to a color and material sample.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(C)(1).)~~

19.62.050 - Procedure—Filing fee.

When the application for a conditional use permit is filed, a uniform fee as set forth by city council resolution ~~shall~~must be paid, for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the proceedings.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(C)(2).)~~

19.62.060 - Procedure—Investigation.

The planning department ~~shall make an investigation of~~may investigate the facts bearing on the case to provide the information necessary for action consistent with the intent of this title and the general plan, and ~~shall will~~ report the findings to the director or commission, as appropriate for their approval.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(C)(3).)~~

19.62.061 - Procedure—Director review.

- A. An administrative review of the requested conditional use permit will be conducted by planning department staff and presented to the director for review following compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act.
- B. Notice of the director administrative review will be provided in accordance with Chapter 19.84.
- C. The director may refer the application to the planning commission for review and determination of approval or denial.

19.62.062 - Procedure—Director administrative review and notice thereof.

- A. The director will, not less than ten nor more than thirty days after the publication of the legal notice of an administrative review on a conditional use permit petition, conduct the administrative review unless continued by the director.
- B. At the administrative review, the director may consider all relevant evidence, including but not limited to applicable staff reports and public testimony. The director will give any interested person a reasonable opportunity to provide comment in conjunction therewith. Based upon the evidence so presented, the director will issue their decision on the application.
- C. The director will announce and record in writing their decision within thirty days after the conclusion of the administrative review. The decision will set forth the findings of the director and any conditions deemed necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of persons in the neighborhood and in the city as a whole. The findings will be based on substantial evidence in view of the whole record.
- D. The decision and findings will be mailed to the applicant at the address shown on the application. The action of the director is final unless appealed pursuant to this chapter.

19.62.063 - Director decisions—Appeals—Planning Commission review.

A. The applicant and any interested person have the right to appeal the decision of the director on an administrative conditional use permit to the planning commission before it becomes final. The timely filing of an appeal will stay the decision of the director to which the appeal relates, pending the planning commission action on the matter. An appeal is deemed timely and complete if it complies with all of the following:

1. The appeal must be written and filed with the director within ten days after the director's decision;
2. The appeal must state the specific ground(s) for appeal; and
3. The appeal must be accompanied by a processing fee in an amount set by city council resolution to defray the cost of processing the appeal.

B. This appeal will follow the procedures set forth in Sections 19.62.070 and 19.62.080.

19.62.070 - Procedure—Planning commission public hearing date and notice.

A. — The hearing date will be set by the community development department following compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act.

B. — Notice of the public hearing will be provided in accordance with Chapter 19.84.

~~(Ord. 712 § 5, 1990; Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978; prior code § 9602(C)(4).)~~

~~(Ord. No. 1153, § 4(U), 5-25-2018)~~

19.62.080 - Procedure—Planning commission public hearing, conduct recommendation, and notice thereof.

A. — The planning commission ~~shall~~will, not less than ten nor more than thirty days after the publication of the legal notice of a public hearing on a conditional use permit petition, hold the public hearing unless continued by the planning commission.

B. — At the hearing, the planning commission ~~shall~~may consider all relevant evidence, including but not limited to applicable staff reports and public testimony. The planning commission ~~shall~~will give any interested person a reasonable opportunity to present testimony in conjunction therewith. Based upon the evidence so presented, the planning commission ~~shall determine~~will issue their decision on the application.

C. — The planning commission ~~shall~~will announce and record in writing its decision within thirty days after the conclusion of the public hearing. The decision ~~shall~~will set forth the findings of the planning commission and any conditions deemed necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of persons in the neighborhood and in the city as a whole. The findings ~~shall~~will be based on substantial evidence in view of the whole record.

D. — The decision and findings ~~shall~~will be filed with city council within ten days after its announcement, and a copy thereof ~~shall~~will be mailed to the applicant at the address shown on the application. The action of the planning commission ~~shall be~~is final unless appealed, pursuant to this chapter.

~~(Ord. 712 § 6, 1990; Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978; prior code § 9602(C)(5).)~~

19.62.090 - Planning commission decisions—Appeals—Council reviews.

A. — Effective Date of Planning Commission Decision. Decisions of the planning commission granting, denying or conditionally granting an application for a conditional use permit ("CUP") ~~shall be~~is final and conclusive on the tenth consecutive calendar day following the date of the planning commission's

decision, unless an effective timely and complete appeal is filed, or a city council review is ordered as provided in this Section 19.62.090.

- B.— Form of Appeal. Except as provided in subsection D of this section, an appeal from a decision of the planning commission relating to a CUP ~~shall~~will not be valid or effective for any purpose unless it meets all of the following requirements:
- 1.— Each such appeal ~~shall~~must be in writing on a form provided by the director of planning and community development of the city ("director"), and ~~shall~~must identify the planning commission's action to which the appeal relates; and
 - 2.— Each such appeal ~~shall~~must be filed with the director prior to the planning commission decision to which the appeal relates becoming final, as provided in subsection A of this section; and
 - 3.— Each such appeal ~~shall~~must be accompanied by a processing fee in an amount set by the city council; and
 - 4.— Each such appeal is filed by or on behalf of any of the following:
 - a.— The owner of any real property located within the city, or
 - b.— A person who lawfully occupies or is entitled to lawfully occupy any real property which is located within three hundred feet of the lot lines of the lot or lots which are the subject of the CUP, or
 - c.— Any interested person.
- C.— Effectiveness of an Appeal. No appeal ~~shall~~will be deemed complete nor effective for any purpose unless it complies with all of the provisions of this Section 19.62.090.
- D.— Review by City Council. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Section 19.62.090 to the contrary, the city council, by majority vote of its total membership and at any time before a planning commission decision becomes final pursuant to subsection A of this Section 19.62.090 may issue an order to review, de novo, a planning commission decision relating to a CUP (~~"order of review"~~).
- E.— Stay of Proceedings. The timely filing of an effective appeal or the timely adoption by the city council of an order of review ~~shall~~will stay the decision of the planning commission to which the appeal or order of review relates pending the city council action on the matter.
- F.— Action of City Clerk. Upon the timely filing of an effective appeal or the adoption of a timely order of review, the city clerk will:
- 1.— Set the matter for hearing at the next most convenient meeting of the city council; and
 - 2.— Give written mailed notice of the time and place of the hearing to the appellant, the applicant, and such other persons and entities in accordance with Section 19.84.030 of this code.
- G.— Action by the City Council. At the time and place of the hearing on an appeal or an order of review, the city council ~~shall~~will conduct a de novo hearing on the matter, at which time all interested persons ~~shall~~will be allowed to present relevant reliable evidence to the city council. The technical rules of evidence applicable to judicial proceedings need not be observed, provided that the matter is resolved by the city council based upon reliable relevant evidence. The applicant ~~shall have~~has the burden of proof to show the existence of the facts which warrant the granting of the CUP.
- H.— City Council Decision. The city clerk ~~shall~~will give written notice of the city council's decision to the appellant, the applicant and any other interested person who requests such notice. The city council's determination ~~shall be~~is final and conclusive subject only to judicial review.

(Ord. 844 § 1, 1996; Ord. 712 § 7, 1990; Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978; prior code § 9602(D).)

(Ord. No. 1153, § 4(V), 5-25-2018)

19.62.100 - Time limit for development.

Unless otherwise stated by the director, planning commission, or council, the time limit for commencement of construction or inauguration of the use under a conditional use permit ~~shall~~will be one year from the effective date of approval. Extension of the time limit, not to exceed two years, may be approved by the director of planning and community development upon demonstration of cause by the applicant. The action of the director extending the time limit may be appealed by the applicant to the planning commission.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(E).)~~

19.62.110 - Effective date.

A conditional use permit ~~shall become~~is effective after an elapsed period of ten days from the date of the approval or resolution of record authorizing the permit unless an appeal is filed.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(F).)~~

19.62.120 - Revisions to site plan approved as part of a conditional use permit.

- A. — Minor revisions to a development plan approved as part of a conditional use permit may be made after review and approval by the ~~planning~~ director. Minor revisions as used in this chapter may in no way violate the intent of any of the standards or conditions of the permit.
- B. — Revisions other than minor revisions, as defined above, ~~shall~~may be made pursuant to the regular conditional use permit procedure set forth in this chapter.
- C. — All copies of the approved revised development plan ~~shall~~must be dated and signed by the planning department and made a part of the record of the subject conditional use permit. One copy of the approved revised site plan ~~shall~~will be mailed to the applicant.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(G).)~~

19.62.130 - Required conditions for specific conditional use permit uses.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this chapter, the specific uses set forth in Sections 19.62.140 through 19.62.161 ~~shall~~must conform to the following specific conditions in addition to those set forth in each zone and such conditions approved by the director or the planning commission.

~~(Ord. 512 § 12, 1982: Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602 (H) (part).)~~

19.62.140 - Quarries, sand pits or gravel pits.

- A. — The application for a conditional use permit for a quarry, sand pit, or gravel pit ~~shall~~must include a contour map indicating operating sites, structures and all improvements including the extremities of the proposed quarry. The application ~~shall~~must further submit a report in detail indicating the method of quarry operation, which report ~~shall~~must include an outline of the sequence and pattern of mineral excavation. This ~~shall~~must include the number spacing, depth of drill holes, and amount of explosives to be used per hole. The maximum height of quarry face for mining and blasting purposes ~~shall be~~may

~~not exceed~~ twenty-five feet. The planning commission upon receipt of this plan may require at the operator's expense a geophysical survey to determine the seismic effects of the proposed blasting pattern, which may be the basis for limiting the size of blast.

B.— Quarries, sand pits, and gravel pits ~~shall~~must comply with the following provisions in addition to zone provisions and conditions imposed in a conditional use permit:

- 1.— No rock or mineral crushing or treatment of minerals ~~shall~~may be permitted.
- 2.— Accessory building ~~shall~~may be used solely for the storage and maintenance of equipment and operating offices.
- 3.— No building may be closer than one thousand feet from any approved public street or highway.
- 4.— Quarry operations ~~shall~~must not be closer than one-half mile from any residential zone.
- 5.— The hours of operation ~~shall~~may be limited from eight a.m. to six p.m. from Monday through Friday.
- 6.— Removal of minerals pursuant to this section ~~shall~~must be conducted so as to limit the emanation of smoke and dust as provided by the standards set forth in chapters of this title.
- 7.— All operations excepting blasting ~~shall~~may not exceed sixty-five decibels as measured from any approved public street or highway.
- 8.— All drill holes ~~shall~~must be tamped to minimize the sonic effects of blasts. No charges may be exposed to the air during detonation.
- 9.— All roads from the site to any public street or highway ~~shall~~must be paved with suitable asphaltic material on a prepared base as per specifications of the director of public works to a width of twenty-eight feet to prevent the emanation of dust.
- 10.— Upon completion of all operations, or operations at any one point, all excavations as well as mounds of waste material ~~shall~~must be graded and the premises restored as near as possible to original conditions and contours or in accordance with the plan approved by the planning commission.

C.— All operations ~~shall~~must be covered by public liability and property damage insurance as required by the city.

D.— Upon cessation of operations for a period of six months, this permit ~~shall~~will terminate and all structures and equipment ~~shall~~must be removed.

E.— To guarantee compliance with conditions set forth in this section and in the conditional use permit, the operator ~~shall~~must post and maintain with the city a performance bond of one hundred thousand dollars, conditioned that the city may enter and restore the premises and recover all its costs.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978; prior code § 9602(H)(1).)~~

19.62.145 - Arcades.

A.— Arcades, as defined in Section 19.04.072, ~~shall~~must comply with the following provisions in addition to zone provisions and conditions imposed in a conditional use permit:

- 1.— If any wall of the arcade is in common with a commercial, office or residential use, such wall ~~shall~~must have a sound transmission class rating of 54 unless the planning commission makes a specific finding that the use adjoining the wall would not be adversely affected by noise from the arcade.
- 2.— A minimum of one bicycle rack space ~~shall~~must be provided for every two mechanical or electronic games operated in the arcade. The required bicycle racks ~~shall~~must be placed for convenient access and use by the arcade, but not in such a location as to create a public safety

or nuisance problem in relation to adjoining businesses, nor ~~shall~~may they be placed in locations requiring the removal of required parking or required on-site landscaping.

- 3.—A person ~~shall~~may not enter, be or remain in any part of an arcade while in possession of, consuming, using or under the influence of any drug or alcoholic beverage. Owners, operators, managers and employees of an arcade ~~shall~~may not permit any such person to enter or remain upon the arcade premises. Establishments holding a valid license from the alcoholic beverage control for on-premises sale of alcoholic beverages are exempted from the provisions of this subsection related to alcoholic beverages, provided that no persons under the age of twenty-one are permitted in the arcade area where alcoholic beverages are permitted.
 - 4.—At least one responsible adult ~~shall~~must be in attendance at all times that the arcade is open and ~~shall~~must provide adequate management and control over the activities at the arcade premises.
 - 5.—Public restroom facilities ~~shall~~must be provided on the arcade premises.
 - 6.—No arcade ~~shall~~may be located within five hundred feet of the property boundary of any public or private school having any grades of kindergarten through twelfth.
 - 7.—A minimum of two footcandle illumination must be maintained in all parts of the premises when the arcade is open.
- B.— No owner, operator, manager or employee of an arcade may violate or cause to be violated any of the provisions set forth in Section 19.62.145 or any conditions attached to the conditional use permit for an arcade.
- C.— In addition to any other provisions of law or this code:
- 1.—Operation of a business in violation of the provisions of this section or the conditional use permit governing the arcade ~~shall~~may be grounds for revocation or non-renewal of any license, permit, or other entitlement authorizing the conduct of such business or any other business, if the business includes the operation of arcades.
 - 2.—Further, violation of the provisions of this section is a public nuisance, and may be abated pursuant to the provisions of Section 731 of the Code of Civil Procedure of the state of California.
- D.— The conditional use permit issued to an arcade will be subject to review within six months from the date of approval. If the arcade is not being operated in accordance with the provisions of this code or chapter or the conditions attached to the conditional use permit, then the conditional use permit may be modified in accordance with this chapter or revoked in accordance with Section 19.62.170.
- If the arcade is not being operated in accordance with the provisions of this chapter and all conditions attached to the conditional use permit, then the director of planning and community development ~~shall~~will cause a public hearing to be held before the planning commission in accordance with the provisions of Sections 19.62.070 and 19.62.080. The decision of the planning commission ~~shall~~may be subject to appeal in accordance with Section 19.62.090.
- E.— Any person operating an arcade as defined in Section 19.04.072 on the date this section becomes effective ~~shall~~must obtain a conditional use permit in accordance with the provisions of this section within six months of the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section.

~~(Ord. 740 § 1, 1991; Ord. 537 § 9, 1982.; Ord. No. 1114, §§ 4, 5, 9-9-2015)~~

19.62.147 - Reserved.

~~**Editor's note**—Urgency Ord. No. 1108, § 6, adopted March 11, 2015 and Ord. No. 1109, § 6, adopted March 25, 2015, repealed § 19.62.147, which pertained to wireless telecommunications and derived from Ord. 911 § 4, 1999.~~

19.62.150 - Open storage yards for junk, auto wrecking, and other waste products.

Open storage yards for junk, auto wrecking, and other waste products ~~shall~~must comply with the following provisions in addition to zone provisions and conditions imposed in a conditional use permit:

- A.— Location. The minimum distance from the site to a residential zone, school, park, playground, church, museum or similar use ~~shall~~must be at least five hundred feet.
- B.— Screening. The site ~~shall~~must include at least an eight-foot high wall on all sides and storage ~~shall~~must not exceed the height of the wall.

(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(H)(2).)

19.62.160 - Oil exploration and extraction.

It is declared to be in the interest of the public health, safety, welfare and the purpose and intent of this section that the following conditions ~~shall~~must be imposed and made a part of any conditional use permit for oil and gas drilling and extraction hereafter issued:

- A.— Soundproofing. Whenever the drilling or redrilling of any oil or gas well is situated within five hundred feet of any dwelling not owned by the permittee, or if applicable, the lessor of the permittee, the derrick, portable rig and machinery or equipment used to operate in connection with drilling ~~shall~~must be enclosed with fire-resistant and soundproofing material unless the ~~planning~~ director is furnished written consent to waiver such condition by all owners and tenants of the dwellings. If a noise nuisance develops after written consent has been given and if inspection under supervision of the ~~planning~~ director sustains that the noise level constitutes a nuisance, the original provisions of soundproofing will prevail.
- B.— The exercise of any right granted by the permit ~~shall~~must conform in all respects to the regulations and requirements of the California State Regional Water Pollution Control Board No. 4 and the California Division of Oil and Gas; and that all water, mud, oil, or any other substances removed as waste material from the land for which the permit is issued ~~shall~~must be deposited in a disposal site approved by the planning commission and the California State Regional Water Pollution Control Board.
- C.— No earthen sump ~~shall~~may be constructed or maintained within five hundred feet, and no drilling ~~shall~~may be permitted within one hundred feet of any natural channel in which there is or may be flowing water.
- D.— Within ninety days after a well is producing, the derrick, all boilers and all other drilling equipment ~~shall~~must be removed from the premises unless permission to store them on the premises is obtained from the planning commission.
- E.— All sumps, or debris basins, or any depressions, ravines, gullies, barrancas or the like which are used for the impounding or depositing of water, mud, oil, or any other fluid, semifluid, or any combination thereof, ~~shall~~must be fenced. When any such place is located more than one-half mile away from any school, playground or dwelling, it ~~shall~~must be enclosed by a cattle fence with wood or steel posts not less than four feet above the ground with not less than three strands of barbed wire secured horizontally to posts. When any such place is located within one-half mile of any school, playground or dwelling, it ~~shall~~must be enclosed by a wire fence of a wire mesh type with a maximum of two inches by four inches opening, and the fence ~~shall~~must be secured to steel posts not less than five feet in height above the ground, and the posts ~~shall~~must have forty-five-degree arms attached to top of posts with three strands of barbed wire attached thereto.
- F.— No permanent buildings or structures ~~shall~~may be erected within one hundred feet of boundaries.
- G.— The permittee ~~shall~~must at all times comply with the provisions of the Public Resources Code of the state relating to the protection of underground water supply and in connection with oil and gas extraction.

- H.— Upon abandonment of any well or cessation of drilling operations, all earthen sumps or other depressions containing drilling mud, oil, or other waste products from the drilling operation ~~shall~~must be cleaned up by removing such waste products or by consolidating all mud, oil, or other waste products into the land by disking, harrowing, and leveling to restore the land to the condition existing prior to the issuance of this permit as nearly as practicable to do so.
- I.— Transfer of Permit. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of a permit, the permit ~~shall~~will expire no later than when the permittee's ownership, lease or other right to develop the property in the manner described in the application is terminated. A permit may be transferred to another person only with the approval of the planning commission. A transfer ~~shall~~will be null and void unless and until (1) the planning commission has approved the transfer, (2) the planning commission has been furnished satisfactory evidence of the transfer, (3) the transferee files with the planning commission a writing wherein he obligates himself to comply with every term and condition of the permit, and (4) the transferee has filed an approved bond.
- J.— No drilling or other uses for which this permit is granted ~~shall~~may be commenced or continued unless and until the permittee has filed, and the ~~planning~~ director has accepted, a bond in the penal amount of twenty-five thousand dollars for each well that is drilled or to be drilled. Any operator may, in lieu of filing such bond for each well drilled, redrilled, produced or maintained, file a bond in the penal amount of one hundred thousand dollars to cover all operations conducted in the city, a political subdivision of the state, conditioned upon the permittee's wilfully and truly obeying, fulfilling and performing each and every term and provision of the permit, and that in case of any failure by the permittee to perform or comply with any term or provision thereof, the planning commission may, by resolution, declare the bond forfeited and the sureties and principal will be jointly and severally obligated to pay forthwith the full amount of the bond to the city. The forfeiture of any bond ~~shall~~will not insulate the permittee from liability in excess of the sum of the bond for damages or injury or expense or liability suffered by the city from any breach by the permittee of any term or condition of the permit or any applicable ordinance or of this bond. The transfer of this permit, as provided for in this chapter, ~~shall~~will not be effective unless and until the transferee has also complied with this condition for posting an approved bond.
- K.— All drilling and production operations ~~shall~~must be conducted in such a manner as to eliminate, as far as practicable, dust, noise, vibration or noxious odors, and ~~shall~~must be in accordance with the best accepted practices incident to drilling for and the production of oil, gas and other hydrocarbon substances. Where economically feasible, generally accepted and used technological improvements for reducing factors of nuisance and annoyance ~~shall~~must be employed by the permittee.
- L.— A certificate of insurance for property damaged and public liability in the amount of five hundred thousand dollars and one million dollars for bodily injury ~~shall~~must be provided.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978; prior code § 9602(H)(3).)~~

19.62.161 - Agricultural stands, temporary.

Temporary agricultural stands ~~shall~~must comply with the following conditions in addition to the general provisions and other conditions imposed for a conditional use permit:

- A.— There will be no more than one temporary agricultural stand per parcel, with a minimum of one acre in area, and there will exist a minimum separation of one thousand feet between stands except for legal existing stands.
- B.— The stand ~~shall~~must be located to provide appropriate setback from the existing or proposed right-of-way to insure adequate ingress or egress and parking area.
- C.— The stand ~~shall~~must be constructed of wood material and its floor area ~~shall~~must be at least approximately five hundred square feet. In addition, a trailer may be used for storage and include a refrigeration unit with location to be approved as part of the conditional use permit application.

- D.— There ~~shall~~may be no more than one sign on the stand in accordance with the sign provisions contained in Title 17.
- E.— The stand must be used for sale of produce or flowers grown on the parcel; in addition, it may be used for sale of produce or flowers grown in the city of Camarillo or Ventura County; however, in no case ~~shall~~may it be used for the sale of prepackaged products.
- F.— The parking area ~~shall~~must be graded to create a level condition with a surface consisting of either rock or another material approved by the ~~planning~~ director which prevents the generation of dust.
- G.— No vehicle, cart or wagon ~~shall~~may be located on or nearby the parcel for the purpose of attracting attention or traffic to the stand by the use of signs or otherwise except for those uses as permitted under this section.
- H.— The property owner or applicant ~~shall~~must post bond sufficient to guarantee removal of the stand and ~~shall~~must provide the city with written consent to remove it in the event the CUP is revoked and the stand is not removed within the time specified by the revocation decision.
- I.— The stand ~~shall~~may be licensed as a general retail use in accordance with the Camarillo business license provisions.
- J.— If the stand is not in use or the land is not in production for a one-hundred-eighty day period, the use ~~shall~~will be deemed voluntarily abandoned and the CUP ~~shall~~will be subject to revocation proceedings.

~~(Ord. 535 § 1, 1982; Ord. 512 § 11 (part), 1982.)~~

19.62.163 - Recycling facility—Intermediate.

Recycling facilities—Intermediate ~~shall~~must comply with the following conditions in addition to the general provisions and other conditions imposed for a conditional use permit:

- A.— Location. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must be appurtenant to a primary use;
- B.— Construction. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must be constructed of durable, waterproof and rustproof material fixed on the site with the color, design and materials approved under the conditional use permit;
- C.— Parking. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must not block or obstruct parking required for the primary use of the property and ~~shall~~must provide parking as provided in Chapter 19.44;
- D.— Signage. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must be clearly marked to identify the type of material to be deposited, operating instructions and the identity and phone number of the operator or responsible person to call if problems occur at the facility. The total sign area ~~shall~~must be in accordance with the sign ordinance;
- E.— Mechanical Equipment. A recycling facility ~~shall~~may not use any power-driven processing equipment except for reverse vending machines;
- F.— Lighting. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must be illuminated to ensure safe and comfortable operation if hours are between dusk and dawn;
- G.— Hours of Use. A recycling facility's hours of use ~~shall~~may match but may not exceed those of the host use;
- H.— Siting. A recycling facility's location is subject to the review and approval of the conditional use permit;
- I.— Materials. A recycling facility may accept glass, aluminum and bi-metals, plastic containers, and include a deposit area for newspapers;

- J.—Storage. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must store all recyclable materials within recycling machines or containers which ~~shall~~must be screened from view with the location and screening approved under the conditional use permit;
- K.—Maintenance. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must be maintained free of litter;
- L.—Noise. A recycling facility ~~shall~~must comply with noise standards established by the noise ordinance;
- M.—Landscaping. A recycling facility ~~shall~~may not remove or impair on-site landscaping and may require additional landscaping to be provided depending on the location and design of the recycling facility.

~~(Ord. 640 § 7, 1987.)~~

19.62.164 - Recycling facility—Large.

Recycling facility—large may be required to comply with the requirements for the recycling facility—intermediate and the following conditions in addition to the general provisions and other conditions imposed for a conditional use permit:

- A.—Location. A recycling facility—large ~~shall~~must not abut a property zoned or planned for residential use;
- B.—Screening. A recycling facility—large ~~shall~~must be screened by landscaping or by a six-foot high block wall or fence, as determined by the planning commission during review of application, unless the fence is used for screening of outside storage, then an eight-foot-high block wall or fence would be required;
- C.—Storage. All exterior storage of materials ~~shall~~must be in sturdy containers which are covered, secured and maintained in good condition. Storage containers for flammable material ~~shall~~must be constructed of inflammable material. No storage will be visible above the height of the fencing;
- D.—Hours of Operation. Hours of operation may be limited by the planning commission through the conditions of project approval;
- E.—Parking. Spaces will be provided on site as set forth under Chapter 19.44;
- F.—Processing. Power-driven processing, including aluminum foil and can compacting, bailing, plastic shredding or other light processing activities necessary for efficient temporary storage and shipment of material may be approved at the discretion of the planning commission if noise and other conditions are met.

~~(Ord. 777 §§ 2, 3, 1993; Ord. 640 § 8, 1987.)~~

19.62.165 - Day care nurseries ~~and day care nurseries~~, short-term.

Day care nurseries ~~and day care nurseries~~, short-term, ~~shall~~must comply with the following conditions in addition to the general provisions and other conditions imposed for a conditional use permit:

- A.—Day care nurseries ~~and day care nurseries~~, short-term, are to provide thirty-five square feet of usable indoor area per child.
- B.—Day care nurseries, ~~short-term~~, are to provide seventy-five square feet of outdoor play area per child. Area is to be secured and screened with a six-foot-high wall or wrought iron fence. Location of outdoor areas is subject to approval of the conditional use permit.
- ~~C.—Day care nurseries, short-term, do not need to provide outdoor play area.~~

~~CD.~~— ___ Parking for day care nurseries ~~and day care nurseries~~, short-term, is to be in conference with subsection G of Section 19.44.050.

~~ED.~~— ___ A copy of the license from the state to operate the day care nurseries ~~and day care nurseries~~, short-term, is to be submitted to the planning department within thirty days of occupancy. All state and/or county licenses to be attained prior to occupancy.

~~EF.~~— ___ When the use occupies space in a multi-tenant building, methods will be employed as necessary to attenuate excess noise to the adjoining tenants. An acoustical analysis or other method as approved by the ~~planning~~ director may be required to satisfy this requirement.

~~(Ord. 660 § 7, 1988.)~~

19.62.166 - Emergency shelter and transitional housing.

Emergency shelters, and transitional housing (in a zone where residential dwellings are not otherwise conditionally permitted), must comply with the following conditions in addition to the general provisions and other conditions imposed for a conditional use permit:

- A.— ___ Management Plan. The emergency shelter and transitional housing provider must have a written management plan, including as applicable, provisions for staff training, neighborhood outreach, security, screening of residents to insure compatibility with services provided at the facility, and training, counseling, and treatment programs for residents.
- B.— ___ General Property Development Standards. The facility must conform to all property development standards of the zoning district in which it is located, except as modified by this section.
- C.— ___ Maximum Number of Persons/Beds. The facility may not contain more than forty beds or serve more than forty homeless persons at any one time.
- D.— ___ Lighting. Adequate external lighting must be provided for security purposes. The lighting must be stationary, directed away from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way, and of an intensity compatible with the neighborhood.
- E.— ___ Laundry Facilities. The facility must provide laundry facilities adequate for the number of residents.
- F.— ___ Common Facilities. The facility may provide one or more of the following specific common facilities for the exclusive use of the residents:
 - 1.— Central cooking and dining room;
 - 2.— Recreation room.
- G.— ___ Security. Parking facilities must be designed to provide security for residents, visitors and employees.
- H.— ___ On-site Parking. On-site parking is subject to the requirements set forth in Chapter 19.44 of this code.
- I.— ___ Outdoor Activity. Outdoor activities may only be conducted between the hours of eight a.m. to ten p.m.
- J.— ___ Concentration of Uses. No more than one facility is permitted within a radius of one thousand feet from another emergency shelter or transitional housing facility.
- K.— ___ Refuse. Facilities must provide a refuse storage area that is completely enclosed with masonry walls not less than five feet high with a solid-gated opening and that is large enough to accommodate a standard-sized trash bin adequate for the parcel. The refuse enclosure must be accessible to refuse collection vehicles.

L.—Shelter Provider. The agency or organization operating the facility must comply with the following requirements:

- 1.—Emergency shelters are to be available to residents for no more than sixty days. Extensions up to a total stay of one hundred eighty days may be provided, if no alternative housing is available.
- 2.—Staff and services must be provided to assist residents to obtain permanent shelter and a steady source of income. These services must be available at no cost to all residents.
- 3.—The provider may not discriminate in any services provided.

~~(Ord. 977 § 4, 2005.)~~

~~(Ord. No. 1077, § 4, 6-12-2013)~~

19.62.167. - Agricultural plant nurseries, retail in the RE-40 AC Zone.

Agricultural plant nurseries, retail in the RE-40 AC Zone ~~shall~~must comply with the following provisions in addition to zone provisions and conditions imposed in a conditional use permit:

- A.— The nursery ~~shall~~may be used for sale of plants, where the majority of the plants for sale are farmed and grown on the premises. A limited amount of planting supplies such as garden pots and compost may be sold.
- B.— The size and location of any commercial signage ~~shall~~may be determined by the Planning Commission, but in no case exceed one on-site sign with a maximum of forty square feet in area.
- C.— A paved parking area ~~shall~~must be provided in accordance with the standards contained in Section 19.44.270 (Parking area improvement).
- D.— Parking and setback areas ~~shall~~must contain permanent landscaping and irrigation in accordance with the standards contained in Section 19.44.260 (Landscaping of parking areas).
- E.— All buildings on the property ~~shall~~must be of a permanent type of construction, made of durable, high-quality materials that are compatible with the surrounding area.
- F.— Any fences or walls on the property ~~shall~~must comply with Section 19.12.100 (Fences and walls). Acceptable fencing materials may consist of masonry, wrought iron, durable vinyl, or other similar durable materials, as approved by the Director of Community Development.

~~(Ord. No. 1032, § 8, 10-8-2008)~~

19.62.168. - Agricultural wineries in the RE-40 AC Zone.

Agricultural wineries in the RE-40 AC Zone ~~shall~~must comply with the following provisions in addition to the development criteria of the zone and conditions imposed for the conditional use permit:

- A.— The minimum area devoted to a winery ~~shall~~must be four acres or larger in size on a parcel in the RE-40 AC Zone.
- B.— No restaurant ~~shall~~may be allowed. Only a limited amount of food service may be allowed in conjunction with wine tasting. Food service ~~shall~~will be limited to crackers, appetizers, and hors d'oeuvres; however no full meals ~~shall~~may be served on the premises unless otherwise approved through a Special Event Permit.
- C.— Wine tasting and sales ~~shall~~may include only wine which is produced or bottled on the premises, and may include wine which is produced for the winery and sold under a brand name owned by the winery. Not less than fifty percent of all wines for sale ~~shall~~must be produced on the premises, using grapes grown on the premises.

- D.— Wine tasting, public tours, and limited retail sales of wine and wine-related accessories, such as corkscrews and wine glasses may be permitted as accessory uses only.
- E.— Retail sales of wine and wine tasting are permitted only where grapes for wine production are grown on the premises.
- F.— The size and location of any commercial signage ~~shall~~may be determined by the Planning Commission, but in no case exceed one on-site sign with a maximum of forty square feet in area.
- G.— Any outdoor activity(ies) or event(s) ~~shall~~will be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission, during consideration of the Conditional Use Permit, or the Director of Community Development in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 19.63 (Special Events).
- H.— The facility ~~shall~~will be limited to an Alcoholic Beverage Control license of a Type 02 (Winegrower).

~~(Ord. No. 1032, § 9, 10-8-2008)~~

19.62.169. - Bed and breakfast inns in the RE-40 AC Zone.

Bed and breakfast inns in the RE-40 AC Zone ~~shall~~must comply with the following provisions in addition to zone provisions and conditions imposed in a conditional use permit:

- A.— The bed and breakfast inn ~~shall~~must be an architecturally- or historically-unique residential structure, which is compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.
- B.— Any alterations to the structure ~~shall~~must be compatible with the architectural character of the structure. Any modifications to the property ~~shall~~must be compatible with the surrounding area.
- C.— The owner or manager of the bed and breakfast inn ~~shall~~may occupy his or her primary place of residence on the site of the bed and breakfast inn.
- D.— The number of guest rooms permitted will be determined based on the size of the existing building and site, compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood, visitor access, and parking. The number of guest rooms ~~shall~~must not exceed five.
- E.— The maximum stay ~~shall~~must be limited to fourteen consecutive days or less.
- F.— Meals ~~shall~~must be limited to breakfast for overnight guests only.
- G.— No cooking facilities ~~shall~~may be provided in individual guest rooms.
- H.— Parking ~~shall~~must be provided at a rate of one off-street parking space per guest room, plus the required parking for the residential use. On-site parking ~~shall~~must be designed and located so as not to detract from the character of the neighborhood. Excessive amounts of paving to meet the parking requirements ~~shall~~may not be allowed.
- I.— Any commercial signage ~~shall~~may be limited to one on-site monument or wall identification sign not to exceed twenty-four square feet in area. Monument signs may not exceed six feet in height.
- J.— Any outdoor activities or events ~~shall~~will be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission during consideration of the Conditional Use Permit or the Director of Community Development in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 19.63 (Special Events).

~~(Ord. No. 1032, § 10, 10-8-2008)~~

19.62.170 - Revocation of conditional use permits.

- A.— Upon recommendation by the director, the ~~body which~~planning commission, or the city council if it was the city council who initially granted the conditional use permit, ~~shall~~may conduct a noticed public hearing to determine whether such conditional use permit should be revoked. ~~If the granting body~~

~~finds~~If any one of the following facts is found to be present, ~~it shall revoke~~ the conditional use permit may be revoked:

- 1.—That the permit was obtained by fraud;
- 2.—That the use for which such approval was granted has ceased to exist by reason of a voluntary abandonment;
- 3.—That the permit or variance granted is being, or has been exercised contrary to any conditions of approval imposed upon such permit or variance, or in violation of any law; or
- 4.—That the use for which the approval was granted is being exercised so as to be detrimental to the public health or safety, or so as to constitute a public nuisance.

B.— If the revocation hearing is conducted by the commission, its decision ~~shall~~will be subject to review on appeal, taken in the time and manner set forth in Section 19.62.090 et seq. hereof.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(I)(1).)~~

19.62.180 - Expiration.

Any conditional use permit ~~shall~~will be null and void if the use granted thereby is not commenced within the time specified in the resolution approving such conditional use permit, or, if no time is so specified, if commencement does not occur within one year from the date the permit is granted. The director of planning and community development or the granting body, upon good cause shown by the applicant, may extend the time limitations imposed pursuant to this section for a period not to exceed one year; provided, that if litigation is filed prior to the exercise of such rights, attacking the validity of such permit, the time for exercising such rights ~~shall~~will be automatically extended pending a final determination of such litigation.

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(I)(2).)~~

19.62.190 - Modification.

Any condition imposed upon the granting of a conditional use permit, including a zoning device granted prior to the adoption of these regulations, may be modified or eliminated, or new conditions may be added; provided, that the body which granted the conditional use permit, which is the subject of the modification proceeding, ~~shall~~will first conduct a public hearing thereon, noticed in the same manner as is required for the initial granting of the same. No such modification ~~shall~~may be granted unless the granting body finds that such modification is necessary to protect the public peace, health and safety, or that such action is necessary to permit reasonable operation under the conditional use permit as granted. ~~If the modification hearing is conducted by the commission, its~~The decision ~~shall to modify a conditional use permit by the granting body will~~ be subject to review on appeal, taken in the time and manner set forth in ~~Section 19.62.090 et seq. hereof.~~

~~(Ord. 403 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 9602(I)(3).)this chapter.~~